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1 [The R.M.C. 806 session was called to order at 0927, 2 March 

2 2018.] 

3 MJ [COL POHL] : This hearing pursuant to Rule of Military 

4 Co mmission 806 is called to o r der . 

5 General Martins, who is here beha l f of the United 

6 States? 

7 CP [BG MARTINS]: Good morning, Your Honor . Present for 

8 the prosecution, Brigadier Genera ·1 Mark Martins, Mr. Robert 

9 Swann, Mr . Edward Ryan, Mr. Jeffrey Grohar i ng, Mr. Cl ay 

10 Trivett, Ms. Ni co l e Tate, Maj or Ct1r i stopher Dykstra, Mr. Dale 

11 Cox , Sergeant And at the doors, Mr. Rudolf Gibbs 

12 and Sergeant All personnel have the r equ i red 

13 clea r ances . 

14 MJ [COL POHL ]: Mr. Nev i n? 

15 LDC [MR. NEVIN]: For Mr. Mohammad , David Nevin, 

16 L i eutenan t Colonel Poteet , Ms. - · Mr. Sowards, 

17 Ms. , Commander - · Major - · Mr. - · all 

18 with appropriate clearances . 

19 MJ [COL POHL] : Ms . Bo r mann? 

20 LDC [MS. BORMANN]: On behalf of Mr. B·in ' Attash , myself , 

21 Edwin Perry, Captain Brian Brady, Major Matthew Seeger , 

22 M s . , M r . a ·1 ·1 w i th a pp r op r i a t e 

23 c l earances. 
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1 MJ [COL POHL] : Mr. Harr i ngton? 

2 LDC [MR . HARRINGTON]: On behalf of Ramzi Bi nalshibh, 

3 James Harrington , Alaina Wichner , Major Christopher lanks , 1111 
4 -· and , a ·1 ·1 of who m have the appropr i ate 

5 clearances. 

6 MJ [COL POHL ]: Mr. Connell? 

7 LDC [MR. CONNE LL ] : On behalf of Mr . a 1 Ba 1 uchi , James 

8 Conne l l; Lieutenant Colone·! Ster .l ing Thomas ; Alka Pradhan ; 

9 LN1 ; Capta i n 

10 spelled with U. All have appropriate clearances . 

11 MJ [COL POHL] : Thank you. And Mr. Ruiz ? 

12 LDC [MR . RUIZ]: Judge , Suzanne Lachel ier, Lieutenant 

13 Colonel Jennifer W·il l iams , Mr. Sean Gleason , Commander David 

14 Furry, Mr. Joseph Wilkinson, Techn i cal Serge nt 

15 - · Mr . . and myse ·1 f on behalf of Mr. a ·1 

16 Hawsawi, a l 1 with appropr i ate cl ea ranees. 

17 MJ [CO L POHL] : Thank you. And General Baker i s al so 

18 present and he has the appropriate clearance. 

19 Okay. Let's do the 114, 114F. Ms. Pr adhan. 

20 ADC [MS. PRADHAN ] : Good morning again , sir. 

21 MJ [ COL POHL ] : Good morning . 

22 ADC [MS. PRADHAN] : Okay. Jus t a few points on 114 and 

23 525, You r Honor. In October's or al argument on 525 
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1 MJ [COL POH L]; Okay . Do you - - do you want to do these 

2 al l together 

3 ADC [MS . PRADHAN] : Yes , sir . 

4 MJ [COL POHL] : ·--- 525? Okay . 

5 ADC [MS . PRADHAN] : I would l ike to take 114 and 525 

6 together --- -

7 MJ [COL POHL] : Okay . 

8 ADC[MS. PRADHAN] : i f that's an ri ght . 

9 MJ [COL POH L] : Okay. I just want to make su r e the 

10 government i s on notice t hat that ' s going to be the ap proach . 

11 Go ahead. 

12 ADC [MS . PRA DHAN ] : Yes, sir. In October's oral argument 

13 on 525 , I l aid out for t he mi litary commission the major 

14 points of Mr . 's dec l ara t ion at 525C, At tachmen t 

15 B . And t hat was about a year's-long investiga t ion into 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 actua l ly - - and this is just to clarify a po i nt that I th i nk 
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1 was mentioned at the 505 on Tuesday . 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 whatever picture we were ab le to pa i nt throug h his declaration 

7 in October, although, of course, we need more from the 

8 government to complete it . 

9 

10 

11 regarding classification, because I think it -- I think it 

12 puts to rest the government ' s previous argument from October 

13 and clarif i es how s imple it would be for the military 

14 commission to order our rel i ef in 525. 

15 The government has expressed many times fear of 

16 disclosure of c lassi fied information. And we share that fear. 

17 We have no i nterest i n vi olat i ng our secur ity clearances; we 

18 have zero interes t in compromising nationa l security . And 

19 t hey have expressed that fear in 525 in the context of 

20 travelling to other countries, speaking to potential 

21 witnesses, and government officials. 

22 So as I understand it , based on yeste rday's 

23 conversation , they may have essentially withdrawn 525G, but 
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1 it ' s been a consi stent·1 y expressed fe a r and, in fact, formed 

2 the basis of the i r argume n t i n October wh i ch led -- if Your 

3 Honor reca l ls , which led di r ec tl y to t he filing of 525G . 

4 That, essent i a 'l l y , i f I boi ·1 i t down, they can ' t t e l l us the 

5 l ocations because then our knowledge of the classi fi ed 

6 locat i ons would l ea d to revealing c l ass i fied i nformat i on. 

7 I think we cleared this up in your col l oquy wit h the 

8 gover nment yesterday. We establ i shed - - aga in, my 

9 understand i ng , i s that we established tha t know l edge of 

10 c l ass i fied i nformation is very d i ffe r ent from confirmation or 

11 disclosure of c l ass i fied i nformation to uncleared people, 

12 wh i ch, of course , we ' re proh ib ited f r om doing. So i n 

13 co nducting in t erviews, for examp l e , we are limited i n scope to 

14 open - source repor ti ng , t o re l y on open - source r eport i ng. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 ADC [ MS. PRADHAN ] : I know . 

22 

23 MJ [CO L POHL] : Okay . 
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1 ADC [MS, PRADHAN]: ---- so -- you remember your conoquy 

2 

3 MJ [ COL POH L ]: I do . 

4 ADC [MS. PRADHAN] : What you said, Your Honor, is that 

5 but the reason I mention Canada is j ust in the context of 

6 this - - of this example, what you sai d was if we have - - if we 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 the governme nt responded this is a fair r eading. 

16 So that's our current understanding of the state of 

17 play. And if that is true, then that should put to rest the 

18 government's concerns abou t t his. Si mple knowledge of knowing 

19 where the black sites are is not the same t hi ng as disclos ure 

20 to unc l eared personnel . Now, we have had severa l years to 

21 prac t ice our interv i ews wi t h unc l eared person nel, and we are 

22 very, very careful about referring only to open - source 

23 report i ng and not con fi rming or denying and kind of 

191 79 

UNCLASSIFIED//FOR PUBLIC RELEASE 



UNCLASSIFIED//FOR PUBLIC RELEASE 

ONOI i lClAb OJO'AO J HEiO J lCA I Eb I lt'AliSCJtlP ; 

1 open-source reporting because we unders tand our ob.ligations. 

2 So if we were, though , to get that confirmation about 

3 where exactly the sites were, that would allow us to fill in a 

4 lot of the gaps that we have been ta l king about in open 

5 session and closed sess i on in Octobe r, about what we know 

6 

7 

8 

9 So we could -- cou ld, assu ming we could put it 

10 together with the discovery , put that knowled ge together with 

11 t he descriptions of his conditions of confinement there. We 

12 

13 

14 MJ [CO L POHL] : If t he gove rnmen t gave you the actual name 

15 of the country ----

16 ADC [MS. PRADHAN] : Yes . 

17 MJ [CO L POHL] : ---- you went and visited that country, 

18 wouldn ' t the country then believe you got the information from 

19 the Unite d States government? 

20 

21 

22 MJ [ COL POHL] : Yeah, but curren t ·ly -- current·iy you have 

23 not been told where the bl ack sites are , so -· ·· 
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1 ADC [MS, PRADHAN] : But they could make that assumpt i on 

2 now. 

3 MJ [COL POHL ]: Well , I know they could, and that's 

4 exa mple, th a t 

5 was 

6 ADC [MS. PRADHAN]: Uh - huh . 

7 MJ [COL POHL ]: - - -- where - - but - ---

8 ADC [MS. PRADHAN] : They - - they could make that 

9 assumption ----

10 MJ (COL POHL]: You understand , I'm just saying there a r e 

11 other equities he r e other t han -- I mean. it's the 

12 

13 ADC [MS. PRADHAN] : Yes . 

14 MJ [COL POHL ] : - - - - and wha t ever - - wl1a t ever t ype o f 

15 promises they made to them if they cooperated . 

16 ADC [MS. PRADHAN] : Co mpl ete l y unders t and, Your Honor . 

17 MJ [ COL POHL ] : Okay. 

18 ADC [MS . PRADHAN] : But again , there's noth i ng to stop 

19 them maki ng that -- I mean, when we go, when we travel, we 

20 have to reg i st er our tr ave 1 , ob v ·i o us 1 y . The aut hor i t i es i n 

21 the countr i es are well aware that we're employees of the 

22 Depa rtmen t of Defe nse . They could very we l l make tha t 

23 assumption r ight now. We don't give them that imp r ession that 
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1 we are confirming or denying anything, but ----

2 MJ [COL POHL] : But the United States government told 

3 t hese countries that if you host these black sites we won ' t 

4 te ·1·1 anybody. And then 

5 ADC [MS . PRADHAN]: Uh-huh. 

6 MJ [CO L POHL] : -- - - they -- now you say we -- we ' re go ·ing 

7 t o tell the defense, okay , don ' t they have to go back to those 

8 countries and say, oh, by the way, we broke our pledge? 

9 ADC [MS. PRADHAN] : Your Honor, first -- well, I think 

10 that there are a number of assumptions there , and we don't 

11 know the answers to all of those assumptions . We don't know 

12 that United States Government said we are never going to tell 

13 anyone the locations of the black sites. 

14 What we know -- what we th i nk we kn ow, and what's 

15 been reported, at least to my knowledge, is that the 

16 government has made agreements with the countries that hosted 

17 black sites that it wou ld never become public , at least not 

18 from the Un ited States' side . Now , we're not proposing that 

19 t his become public i n any way, shape, or form . We are -- I'm 

20 an employee of the Department of Defense . And what we're 

21 asking for -- we're fully cleared -- a ll we're as ki ng for are 

22 the tools to be able to conduct th i s tria l. So we ' re not 

23 asking for t he means to disclose this information to anyone 
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1 other than security-cleared defense personnel so that I can 

2 add in the detai l s from that loca t i on information to the 

3 chronology that we're trying to build abou t this. 

4 MJ [ COL POHL ] : Okay. 

5 ADC [MS . PRADHAN] : The you know , that's -- unless you 

6 have any quest i ons, Yo ur Honor . 

7 MJ [COL POHL] : I have no thing further. 

8 ADC [MS. PRADHAN] : Okay. 

9 MJ [COL POHL] : Any other defense cou nse l wants to be 

10 heard on 525, 114 , and 114F? Mr. Nevin . Again, we're only 

11 talking about the classified part of it . 

12 LDC [MR . NEVIN]: I understand , Your Honor. And I just 

13 will say now I'm uncertain about where we are with respect to 

14 the discuss i on we had yesterday. 

15 MJ [COL POHL] : Why don' t you ho .Id that thought, ·1et me 

16 ask the government a couple questions ----

17 LDC [MR. NEVIN]: Okay . 

18 MJ [COL POHL ]: --- - I think it may c ·la ri fy it . 

19 Mr . Groharing, let me ask you kind of the question 

20 that got us here. I forget whether it was -- I think it was 

21 probably in October in a closed session 

22 which precipitated a lot of t he notices and 

23 gu i dance up to the most rece nt guida nce we got this week. And 
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1 what we have , as I recal l 

2 

3 

4 

5 Is it a fair read ing of your most rece nt guidance 

6 that t hat is now perm itted or no t ? 

7 TC [MR. GROHARING] : That would be perm i tted to 

8 trave l 

9 MJ [COL POHL ]: Okay . 

10 TC (MR. GROHARING]: to a location based on 

11 open -sou r ce informat i on that they believe hosted a black site . 
- - -

12 That wou l d be permitted . 

13 MJ [COL POHL ] : Okay . 

14 TC [MR. GROl-lARING]: Is t t,a t the only quest i on, Your 

15 Honor? 

16 MJ [CO L POHL] : Unless you have someth i ng to add and 

17 then-··-

18 TC [MR. GROHARING]: I have nothing to add. Sub j ect to 

19 you r questions , Yo ur Ho nor . 

20 MJ [ COL POHL ] : No . Okay. 

21 Mr . Nevin , does that address your quest i on? 

22 LDC [MR . NEV IN ] : Yes , s i r . I was refer r i n g to t he 

23 disc ussion yesterday that as l ong as our question i s based 
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1 overt l y -- or our newspaper ad is based overtly on open-source 

2 i nfo r mation, not on classified information, we ' d be fine. And 

3 that was in response to my argument that we were in a conflict 

4 posit i on and bas i cally you we r e saying, no, you're not, 

5 because you can do what you ne ed to do in the way I just 

6 desc r·ibed . 

7 Then when you spoke to Mr . Sowards this morning, yo u 

8 said, look, the prob·l em is the outs i de world doesn't know 

9 where you got your information and so they will ass ume that it 

10 came from a cl assi fi ed source , even i f it didn't . And I 

11 don't - - I also would prefer to be just permitted to have the 

12 situation here work in such away that we would be able to 

13 fulfill our obligation. 

14 MJ [COL POHL ]: I unders t and . 

15 

16 

LDC [MR. NEVIN]: 

MJ [COL POHL] : 

I just want to be cl ear. 

Yea h , okay . I unders t and. And t he 

17 context of Mr. Sowards ques t ion whi ch, of course , wasn ' t 

18 really the issue before me. I ' m just saying in the context of 

19 the pleadings ----

20 LDC [MR. NEVIN]: Yeah , okay. 

21 

22 

23 
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1 It did not add ress 

2 anything other tha n that . 

3 LDC [MR . NEVIN]: Just a pleading. Okay . 

4 MJ [COL POHL]: What I - - what I heard the government say 

5 yesterday, if you talk to somebody and say, I saw in The New 

6 York Times X, and X i s class·i f ·ied, are you not con ·firming or 

7 de nyi ng it and you are permitted to do that . 

8 Is that correct, Mr . Groharing? 

9 TC [MR. GROHARING]: Yes, sir . That• s correct. 

10 MJ (COL POHL ]: Okay. And then with the double-tap 

11 situation , which I think you asked me abou t yesterday ----

12 LDC [MR . NEVIN]: Yeah . 

13 MJ [CO L POHL]: that you have classif ·ied sources and 

14 unclassified sources, as long as you att ribute t o unclass i fied 

15 sources, you're okay. 

16 LDC [MR. NEVIN]: Okay . 

17 MJ [CO L POHL] : And if you have the situat i on where you 

18 have only unclassified sources and no c l assified sources , then 

19 you are re ally okay. I mea n , that's what I'm reading and 

20 that's what seems to be 

21 LDC [MR. NEVIN]: Sure. 

22 MJ [ COL POHL] : Now, again , I don't want to dr ift too much 

23 into 524 becau se tha t -- that's a slightly different i ssue. 
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1 LDC [ MR, NEVIN]: Ye s , sir . 

2 

3 

MJ [COL POHL] : But what we have before me is really what 

4 it appears to have been reso l ved, that that type of 

5 invest i gat i on is permitted. 

6 LDC [MR. NEVIN ] : Okay. And then - - the n just the last 

7 part ·is I would just s·imply j o·in Ms . Pradhan's re mark, that 

8 if -- i f that's the case, t hen nothing is cha nged in terms of 

9 the security pic t ure by us bein g advised by t hem -- by the 

10 government, that is to say -- confirming the locations. In 

11 other words, from you granting 525. nothing would change about 

12 the security posture. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 saying we were told by t he government in a class i fied 

18 pleadi ng. And so -- so it seems t o me t hat -- now , I just 

19 wanted to make s ure that there hadn't been some wr in kl e i n 

20 what was discussed yesterday that was leading to a 

21 dif f ere nt ----

22 MJ [ COL POHL] : And that's why I kin d of wanted to do this 

23 in a closed session, because I think the Moroccan trip is a 
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1 perfect examp ·1 e of open-source information that permitted the 

2 defense to - - the defense to investigate an alleged black 

3 site. An d what the government position i s today - - and we 

4 don't know whe ther it evolved, that's not the issue - - i s that 

5 that type of trip is permissible. 

6 LDC [MR. NEVIN]: R·ight . 

7 MJ [COL POHL]: Now, the 114/114F issue is a variation 

8 is a disclosure issue and a confirmation iss ue from the 

9 government to the defense , which is a slightly differe nt 

10 issue. But as far as the investigative pi ece is, I believe, 

11 consistent with the 525 -- most recent 525 guidance, we're 

12 back to the status quo ante of before you want to say 

13 

14 

15 LDC [MR. NEVIN]: Right. And -- and I ' m not asking you to 

16 revis i t that or -- - -

17 MJ [ COL POHL] : Okay. 

18 LDC [MR . NEVIN]: or anyone to revisit that, I'm 

19 just--- -

20 M J [COL POHL ] : I d ·i d n ' t th ·i n k you were . 

21 LDC [MR. NEVIN]: Yeah. But I' m just saying , in view of 

22 that, t hen there's no loss of secur i ty protections by 525 

23 being granted. Because clearly - -- -
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1 MJ [COL POHL]: we ·1·1. you say "be ing granted . " What do 

2 you want me to grant? Because all I can basically -- what I 

3 have now is, and t his is where we're kind of out of sequence 

4 here, the most recent thing is I have - - and again , I may hav e 

5 the dates wrong, I believe the 27 February notice of the most 

6 recent guidance, is that --

7 Mr. Connell, you are always good on this. Is it 27 

8 or 28 February? 

9 LDC [MR. NEVIN] : 27. 

10 

11 

LDC [MR. RUIZ]: On 525, it's 27. 

MJ [COL POHL]: Okay. The 27 February notice I got from 

12 the government to you, I'm not sure what there is for me to 

13 grant. 

14 LDC [MR. NEVIN]: There's the underly ing motion i n 525 

15 that seeks a clear statement of where our client -- where 

16 Mr. Mohammad was - - - -

17 MJ [ COL POHL] : Okay. 

18 LDC [MR . NEVIN]: was held and ----

19 MJ [COL POHL]: Okay . 

20 LDC [ MR . NEV IN J : and t he poi n t o 'f th ·j s - - - -

21 MJ [ COL POHL] : Yeah . 

22 LDC [MR ' NEV IN] : j us t th i s ·1 as t 1 i t t l e pi e Ce i s t 0 

23 say t here 's no reason not to grant that mo tion because there ' s 
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1 nothing about us going out -- as long as we are double 

2 tapping, as you have said, there ' s nothing about us going out 

3 and following up on informat ion that the gover nment 

4 confirms ----

5 MJ [CO L POHL] : Yes, I mean -- --

6 LDC [MR. NEVIN]: would reveal class ·if ·ied ----

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

MJ [COL POHL] : the grant -- the grant would be, in 

essence, review ing the 27 February guidance and saying that's 

consistent with the current practice. And I wi l l look at the 

plead i ng and t1ow I word it , but it - - what I'm saying is, on 

t he invest igat ive piece, this is different 

14 And -- but the 524 is a different pi ece 

15 of the investigative pie . I will look at the pleadings and 

16 word someth i ng for you. It's not a big deal. 

17 LDC [MR. NEVIN]: Well , Your Honor, it -- i t may be a big 

18 deal i n t his sense: I take it -- and I didn' t file the 

19 motion , we were joined to it, so others may speak to it . I 

20 take it that the mot i on asks you to order the government to 

21 tell us affirmatively the locations of the black si tes . 

22 MJ [ COL POHL] : Okay . 

23 LDC [ MR . NEV IN ] : Mr . Mohammad was he 1 d i n - · not i n Si t e 
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1 1 I 

2 MJ [COL POHL] : Okay . Now we're mix i ng two different 

3 issues. 

4 LDC [ MR. NEVIN] : Yes. 

That's part of this issue, okay. I'm not 

6 ad dressing that part of it. When I said it's no big deal, 

5 MJ [COL POHL] : 

7 what I meant was ----

8 LDC [MR. NEVIN ] : we1 ·1, I ----

9 MJ [COL POH L]: - - - - say i ng the guidance change to wo r d it 

10 doesn't strike me as a big deal. That does not necessarily 

11 mean I'm going to grant 114 and 114F . 

12 LDC [MR . NEV I N] : Yes . 

13 MJ [COL POHL] : I thought your ques t"i on to me was whether 

14 or not - - I thought what we were di scussing was whether or not 

15 the Moroccan invest i gat i on would be permitted ----

16 LDC [MR. NEVIN]: Yes. 

17 MJ [COL POHL]: --- - under the new gu i dance . And I think 

18 the answer -- well, the answer to me is yes, and we're bac k to 

19 t here. Does t hat mean 

20 

21 

22 

23 LDC [MR . NEVIN]: I understand t ha t to be st i ll a matter 
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1 that the military commissions has not yet decided. 

2 MJ [COL POHL ]: Right . 

3 LDC [MR . NEVIN]: And I only wanted to ma ke the point I 

4 think that I heard Ms . Pradhan make as wen , that g i ven a·1 1 of 

5 the admittedly separate things that we discussed yesterday and 

6 that you and I have j us t been discussing, those things taken 

7 as a who l e indicate that there ' s no reason -- there's nothing 

8 to be lost by granting 525 , the underlying motion, and 

9 ordering the government to provide that info rma tion . 

10 Because -- because we -- our i nvest i gation will be predicated 

11 on something othe r than that, so ----

12 MJ [COL POHL ]: Okay . I understand. I understand 

13 your .. .... ·· 

14 LDC [MR. NEVIN]: Thanks, Your Honor. 

15 MJ [COL POHL] : Any other defense counse ·1 wish to be 

16 heard? Apparently not. 

17 That br i ngs us to 534 . Ms. Pradhan. 

18 ADC [MS . PRADHAN] : A lot of face time today, Your Honor . 

19 Just one minute, if you don ' t mind . 

20 [Pause.] 

21 MJ [COL POHL]: What's the classification level of 534? 

22 ADC [MS. PRADHAN] : 

23 
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1 MJ [COL POHL] : Okay. 

2 ADC [MS . PRADHAN ]: The government's response, 534A, was 

3 I believe primarily because of the 

4 attachment of the RDI index, which was class i fied overal l as 

5 And our repl y was c lassif ied also at the 

6 

7 MJ [COL POHL] : Okay. Let ' s take a 15-minute break . I 

8 have a computer i ssue I need to address and then we'll come 

9 back to 534. Commission is in recess. 

10 [The R. M.C . 806 session recessed at 0950, 2 March 2018.] 

11 [END OF PAGE] 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 
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1 [The R.M.C. 806 session was called to order at 1018, 2 March 

2 2018.] 

3 MJ [COL POHL ]: The commiss i on is called to order . 

4 Tr i al Counsel. any changes si nce we recessed? 

5 CP [BG MARTINS]: No, Your Honor . 

6 MJ [CO L POHL ]: Mr. Nev i n? 

7 LDC [MR. NEVIN]: No, Your Honor. 

8 MJ [COL POHL] : Ms. Bormann? 

9 LDC [MS. BORMANN] : No judge. 

10 MJ (COL POHL] : Mr. Harr i ngton? 

11 LDC [MR. HARRINGTON J : No change, Judge. 

12 MJ [COL POHL ]: Mr. Connell? 

13 LDC [MR . CONNELL]: No change , sir. I have a record 

14 i ssue , when convenient. 

15 MJ [COL POHL] : Sure. And Mr . Ruiz? 

16 LDC [MR. RUIZ]: No changes . 

17 MJ [CO L POHL] : Mr. Con nell? 

18 LDC [MR . CONN ELL ]: Sir, I wanted to br ing to the mil itary 

19 commission's attent ion that on Tuesday the issue came up about 

20 the status of 525F in the record . In going back and r ereading 

21 the t ra nscrip t and look ing at notes , what it appears happened 

22 i s that our team had sl i des in 525 that were marked 525F, bu t 

23 then were - - after consu l tation with the CISO were not used in 
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1 court. 

2 And then in the closed session on 20 October 2017, 

3 t he government made an argu ment , t his was t he spreadsheet that 

4 was referred to in court yesterday , and said please assign 

5 th i s the next number , but - - which might have been 525F, but 

6 then 525G came along la t er and there was never a clear 

7 designation about that other 525F. 

8 The signif i cance of that is that -- so we sort of 

9 have a n exhibit t hat wasn ' t used but got a number, and we have 

10 an exhibit that was used and didn ' t r eally get a number. So 

11 what my proposa l is is that we retain 525F for the sl i des , 

12 wh i ch were not used although they were mar ked, and that the 

13 co urt reporter simply assign another number later in the 

14 series for the - - for the spreadsheet that Ge neral Ma r tins 

15 used on 20 Oc t ober. 

16 MJ [ COL POHL]: Okay. 

17 LDC [MR . CO NNELL] : I know you' 11 have to look into that ; 

18 I just wanted to bring i t t o your attention . 

19 MJ [ COL POHL]: Yeah , okay . Thank you f or mentioning it 

20 to me. Let me -- let me talk to my paralegals and the court 

21 reporters and we'll f igure out a way a head. So the 525F was 

22 marked but never used, and the govern ment sp r eadsheet was - ---

23 LDC [MR . CO NNELL] : Used but neve r marked. 
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1 MJ [COL POHL]: ---- used but never marked. 

2 LDC [MR . CO NNELL ]: Yes, sir . Had a certain symmetry to 

3 it . 

4 MJ [COL POHL ]: Does it have a - - did it have a current 

5 number on i t? Well, they never put on it? 

6 LDC [MR. CO NNELL] : To my know1 edge, no. 

7 MJ [COL POHL] : Okay . 

8 LDC [MR. CONNELL] : Or the number 525F might have been 

9 used on it, put on it , I'm not 100 percent sure. 

10 MJ (COL POHL] : Okay. Thank you, Mr. Connell . I' ll track 

11 t hat down. 

12 LDC [MR . CONNELL]: Thank you. 

13 MJ [COL POHL] : 534. 

14 ADC [MS. PRADHAN]: Thank you, Your Honor. Just one quick 

15 housekeeping th in g. During the break, a couple of the members 

16 of the trial judiciary who will remain nameless were 

17 expressing t ha t they were freezing; I think the quote was like 

18 an icebox. So I was wondering whether Your Honor might 

19 consider raisi ng t he temperat u re just slight l y. 

20 M J [COL POHL ] : Perhaps you are col d a 1 so? 

21 ADC [MS . PRADHAN] : I don't want to weigh in , Your Honor. 

22 I ' m just looking for ----

23 MJ [COL POHL] : Actua ll y i t feels very pleasant to me. 
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1 Does i t appear cold to everybody? I'm heari ng -- I 'm seeing 

2 l eft t o r ight . Okay. I n al l my judic i a l autho ri ty , can you 

3 kick i t up slightly. 

4 TC [MR. SWANN]: I t wou l d requ ire me t o go out beca use 

5 I ' ve got to go get a key . 

6 ADC [MS. PRADHAN] : All r ·igh t. We can- - - -

7 MJ [COL POHL ]: Okay . I t el l you what, Mr. Swa nn , stay 

8 because we're not going to be here - - wel l, r ep hrase that . 

9 Just go ahead and stay and th i s may e ncourage a more succ i nct 

10 ar gument , not that it necessarily has to. 

11 Go ahead , Ms . Prad han. 

12 ADC [MS . PRADHAN]: I will try my best, Your Honor , mostly 

13 because I can ' t fee l my fingers, which should answer your 

14 

15 

16 

quest i on. 

On 534, th i s is 

want t o fi rs t add r ess 

i t ' s a comp l icated motion. And I 

o r c l arify my answer to the mi lita r y 

17 commissio n yes t erday . The military comm i ss i on was concer ned 

18 that this was a motion to recons i der . And it i s not . And I'd 

19 like to explai n why . 

20 The or i gina l mo ti on, 534, was a mot i on to compel 

21 documents responsive t o category 2 . h . of 

22 

23 The gove rn ment's response i n AE 534A a t foot notes 2 
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1 and 3 -- that's, I think, pages 2 and 3 as we·11 of their 

2 response -- lists several groups of 2 . h. summaries or 

3 summaries that they've produced that they consider to be 

4 responsive to category 2.h. And I bel i eve those catego ri es 

5 were statements given by -- primarily statements given by 

6 Mr. al Baluchi to interrogators . Those were produced the 2nd 

7 of February 2017, the 6th of February 2017, 2nd of June 2017, 

8 t he 27th of J une 2017, and the 13th of September 2017. That's 

9 taking those two footnotes in 534A together . 

10 Now, the 2. d . discovery, those are t he secret 1 evel 

11 personnel profiles with the UFis, provided to defense were 

12 provided on the 2nd of June 2017. And, of course , we had 

13 received the government ' s chronology of Mr. al Baluchi 's 

14 de ten ti on under category 2. a . in September 2016. Okay . So 

15 that's where we are with those dates . 

16 Now , I want to reiterate one point t hat I made 

17 yesterday, which i s t hat when we received the 2.d . discovery , 

18 we had at that point a ·1most no way of associating the 

19 pe r sonnel profiles wi th t he statements produced by the 

20 government or the summa r·ies produced by the government that 

21 were meant to be responsive to 2.h. or really any other 

22 summaries. There were a few that we were able to marry 

23 because there are personnel who are listed as having been with 
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1 Mr. al s a·1 uchi when he during his init i al days of torture 

2 at COBALT, or locat i on 2, what - - however you wa nt to refer to 

3 it . But other than t hose, going t hrough his s t atements and 

4 hi s medica l records and a l l of that , t here was no way for us 

5 to know wh i ch personnel were there . But that's -- that was 

6 our abili t y to compare. 

7 The government then gave us init i al l y the RDI index 

8 on the 6th of Se pt ember 2017 as an attachment t o 

9 Mr . Grohar i ng's l etter . 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 MJ [COL POH L] : Why would I need to do t hat? 

21 ADC [MS . PRAD HAN ] : Excuse me , Your Honor? 

22 MJ [COL POHL ]: Wha t I ' m say i ng is , I get a classified 

23 or i ginal doc ument - ---
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1 ADC [MS, PRADHAN] : Yes . 

2 MJ [COL POHL] : - - - - and then the government says, we 

3 propose a summary, and eventually I approve a summary . 

4 ADC [MS. PRADHAN]: Uh-huh. 

5 MJ [COL POHL] : Wel 1 , I'm approving a summary of that 

6 document. 

7 ADC [MS. PRADHAN]: Yes, sir . 

8 MJ [COL POHL] : Not other documents, not other documents 

9 that are related to it 

10 ADC [MS. PRADHAN] : Yes . 

11 MJ [COL POHL] : --- - none other thing. So why did -- the 

12 fact I didn't see other discovery or other documents is 

13 particularly relevant. 

14 ADC [MS, PRADHAN]: It's not re levan t to your approval of 

15 those -- that particu ·lar summary, Your Honor, but it is 

16 re l evant to the fact that we later found out and we now know, 

17 all right, t he mi litary commission now has the ability, as we 

18 all do, to understand that, when those summaries are compared 

19 to other discovery that the government has put out, they're 

20 internally inconsistent. 

21 MJ [COL POHL]: But isn't the summary not -- I approve a 

22 summary of a document. 

23 ADC [MS. PRADHAN] : Yes, sir . 
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1 MJ [COL POHL]: I don't approve a summary of a document 

2 and say, well, wait a minute, th·i s other document contradicts 

3 it , this other document says something else. 

4 ADC [MS. PRADHAN ] : Yes, sir. 

5 MJ [COL POHL] : So I don· t understand your point. Is is 

6 that, okay, other documents may contradict a particular 

7 summary; that does not ma ke the summary inadequate, does i t? 

8 ADC [MS. PRADHAN] : Wen, it does, sir, if that summary we 

9 then find out la ter is contradicted by a different summary or 

10 by another piece of the discovery that the government has 

11 provided that casts aspersions on that summary, frankly, that 

12 makes it clear that there may be something very wrong with 

13 that summary . 

14 So what -- the reason we 're asking , right, for the 

15 under l ying documents is to be able to tell what is wrong with 

16 the summaries, which the military commission had no ability to 

17 know at the time . 

18 MJ [COL POHL] : Okay . I understand your point . Go ahead. 

19 ADC [MS. PRADHAN ] : Than k you , sir. 

20 Now the I have three examples, Your Honor. Now, 

21 in 534B, I think we ha d something like 26 major examples of 

22 the complex discrepancies . 

23 MJ [COL POHL] : Well, you're going to keep it to three. 
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1 ADC [MS, PRADHAN]: I'm going to keep it to three. 

2 MJ [CO L POHL ]: Because I can read it 

3 ADC [MS . PRADHAN] : Given the option -- I can stand here 

4 in hee ·is an day , but----

5 MJ [COL POHL] : But I also can read the pl eadings so ----

6 ADC [MS. PRADHAN] : I know s i r. 

7 MJ [COL POHL ]: Okay . Go ahead . 

8 ADC [MS. PRADHAN] : And so a ·1ot of those are in the 

9 pleading, so I'l l refer you to the brief on those, but I do 

10 want to high light three, with your permission . 

11 MJ [COL POHL ]: Go ahead. 

12 ADC [MS . PRADHAN]: This i nvolves a few different 

13 documents . Would ·it be conven·i ent or, I don't know, easier 

14 for Your Honor if I g ive you the r e ferenc es t o the documents 

15 that I'm going to put up? Because I ' m going to show you how 

16 we compared, for t his firs t example, fou r differ ent docu ments . 

17 MJ [COL POHL ]: I'm no t sure what you're asking me to do . 

18 ADC [MS . PRADMAN]: I'm asking you if -- so I have 

19 MJ [COL POHL] : You want to d isplay the documents, di sp·lay 

20 the documen ts . 

21 ADC [MS . PRADHAN]: I'd like to d isplay the docume nts , but 

22 I ' m going t o tell you what I'm going to display first. 

23 MJ [CO L POHL] : Okay . 
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1 ADC [MS, PRADHAN] : If that makes sense. So the first 

2 document I'm going t o s how you is the RDI i ndex -- or 

3 Mr . al Baluchi 's version of the ROI index that we filed in 

4 534B, wh i ch r ea l l y jus t adds documen t r e f erence numbers j ust 

5 fo r ease of reference . The second document i s the chronol ogy, 

6 the 2.a. chro nology t ha t we we r e g i ven by the government, 

7 which is in the reco r d at 5348 , Attachment D. The th i rd is a 

8 custodia·1 report of Mr. al Ba l uchi ' s , wh i ch is in the record 

9 at 534 Attachment E. The fourth is the 2 . d . profi l e of an 

10 i ndiv i dual code named X3l , wh i ch is in the record at 502Y , 

11 Attachment G. And the last one is a pr ofile, another pr ofile 

12 of SG1 , which is in the record at AE 502Y again, Attachment G. 

13 So I'm going to go through th i s kind of slowly. The 

14 summary i t sel f is dated i n t he index as mi d 2003 . 

15 May I have access to the document camera? 

16 MJ [CO L POHL] : Sure. 

17 I t hin k we need to get r i d of the green. Okay. 

18 ADC [MS . PRADHAN] : A·1 ·1 r i ght . And that ' s document number 

19 65. 

20 MJ [ COL POHL ] : Okay . 

21 ADC [MS . PRADHAN] : 

22 

23 
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1 chronology -- wh i c h has disappeared -- okay. 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 TC [MR. GROHARING]: Judge , if I cou ld just ask counsel to 

9 l et everyone know what t he Bates number is on the document --

10 the att achments that she references have a number of documents 

11 behind them -- that way parties could follow. 

12 MJ [COL POHL ]: Okay . 

13 ADC [MS. PRADHAN] : I will be happy to. The custodial 

14 repor t i tself i s 

15 up right now . 

and that's the r eport t ha t i s 

16 TC [MR. GROHARING] : And par t of which attachmen t? 

17 ADC [MS. PRADHAN] : Tha t 's part of Att achment E t o 534. 

18 MJ [COL POHL ]: To t he base - - to the base motion? 

19 ADC [MS. PRADHAN ] : Yes . That's t h e base motion to 534 . 

20 MJ [COL POHL] : Go ahead. Okay . Next? 

21 ADC [MS . PRADHAN] : That may be 534B , excuse me . 

22 M J [ COL POHL ] : 0 k a y . I t ' s 5 3 4 B . 

23 ADC [MS . PRADHAN ] : Yes . So this ·· th e fi rst paragraph 
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1 of this states, "During the custodial interview conducted in 

2 mid 2003 . ~ custodial interview , "Ammar al Baluchi what told 

3 that if he did not make the decision to come forward with the 

4 truth, his situation was goes to change . " He was then 

5 fingerprinted before the interview continued. And so again , 

6 

7 

8 

9 right. 

10 What's not clear is exactly who threatened him, right? This 

11 is a summary of a custodial interview. 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

So regardless of who conduc t ed the custodial 

22 whatever. That's impo rtant . 

23 I n part i cu 1 a r , the quest i on of whether Mr . a 1 Ba l u ch i 

19205 

UNCLASSIFIED//FOR PUBLIC RELEASE 



UNCLASSIFIED//FOR PUBLIC RELEASE 

ONOI i lClAb OJO'AO J HEiO J lCA I Eb I lt'AliSCJtlP ; 

1 was interviewed at his point of capture by CIA personne·1 who 

2 were later involved in the application of torture techniques, 

3 t hat's crucial to evaluating the psychological effect on 

4 Mr. a·1 Baluchi. And, in fact, the government spreadsheet, the 

5 ROI index, includes six further summaries of, quote, custodial 

6 interviews that -- t ha t CIA officials -- that CIA personnel 

7 were apparently involved in . 

8 

9 

10 

Back. Now , when we 

11 And that was 502Y, Attachment G. It says, X3L was present --

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

well, actually it first says that in t he first paragraph, 

it states - - al l right, in the first paragraph of this - - and 

I want to talk about the second page in a second - - in the 

21 And so then on this second page, i t talks about his 

22 involvement. 

23 
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1 

2 MJ [COL POHL] : Just a second . Go ahead. 

3 ADC [MS . PRADHAN] : It also says that he interacted with 

4 Ammar on 58 separate days while at Location Number 2 and he 

5 was involved in the application of all of these torture 

6 techniques on Ammar when he was in Location Number 2. Now, 

7 the profile itself actually conveniently skims over any role 

8 he may have had in his, quote, re ·levance to Mr . al Bal uchi 's 

9 interrogat ions in Pak.istan. It also goes on -- you know, it 

10 goes on to talk about his involvement in Ammar's torture, but 

11 it doesn't talk about his involvement in i nterrogations in 

12 Pakistan . 

13 MJ [COL POHL]: You are assuming that the or·i ginal 

14 document does discuss that? Most of your assumptions you are 

15 making , it says the summaries are inadequate because it must 

16 be in t he original document. 

17 ADC [MS. PRADHAN] : The assumption, Your Honor, is tl1at 

18 that custodi a·1 summary, that custodial report that we 

19 initially had, there must be a reason that the government 

20 assigned in the 

21 And so they have some way of knowing 

22 that these personnel are relevant to this summary that we 

23 don' t have. I have no ins ight into why X3L , who we know is at 
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1 

2 

3 

4 Now, the situation actually gets more complicated 

5 than that because, as it turns out, when 

6 

7 

8 

9 And let me see if I can zoom in a little bit. Ri ght . 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 So we -- it also, frankly, ra i ses the question of how 

20 ma ny CIA personnel were ·j n Pak·i stan upon Mr. al Bal uchi 's 

21 capture . And we -- elsewhere in 534B, we t al k abou t the fact 

22 that FBI agents were present i n Pak i st an upon Mr . a ·1 Ba ·1 u chi ' s 

23 capture . We just have no idea how many U.S . agents were there 
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1 and exactly what their involvement was, and t his was a 

2 surpr i se. Because we had, as I sa i d, we had been led to 

3 believe that his interrogations -- or his interv iews in 

4 Pa kistan were conducted solely by Pak istani officia l s, that he 

5 did not have interactions with CIA there. This i s clearly 

6 re l evant to creating a chronology of hi s de te ntion and a 

7 chronology of his torture by the CIA . 

8 I will move on to the second example , Your Honor , 

9 un less you have any questions. 

10 MJ (COL POH L]: No, go ahead. 

11 ADC [MS. PRADHAN ] : Okay. 

12 MJ [COL POHL ]: And I 'm looking at the pleading here, but 

13 I am l i stening to you, so don't 

14 ADC [MS. PRADHAN] : Okay. 

15 MJ [COL POHL] : Don't take the f act I'm not ----

16 ADC [MS. PRADHAN] : I always think you are listening to 

17 me, Your Hono r. 

18 MJ [COL POHL] : Okay . 

19 ADC [MS. PRADHAN ] : Okay. So the documents 

20 TC [MR. GROHARING]: Your Honor , excuse me, Judge, if I 

21 could just in terrupt. If the Military Judge is going to have 

22 quest i ons for the government, it may be more effic i ent to ask 

23 them now examp l e by examp l e as opposed to at the end. I don 't 
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1 know if you are or not, but I would j ust suggest that if you 

2 are, I can answer those now . 

3 MJ [COL POHL]: I ' m good . 

4 ADC [MS. PRADHAN] : Okay. 

5 MJ [COL POHL] : Go ahead. 

6 ADC [MS. PRADHAN]: The relevant documents to this next 

7 example are again the Attachment B; 

8 the chrono·logy of Mr. al Baluchi 's detention , which is 534B, 

9 Attachment D; a medical report that is in the record at 502Y, 

10 Attachment H 

11 

12 

13 

14 So this is listed in 

15 I found my chronology . There ' s a lot of paper up here. 

16 Al l right. 

17 So document 109 is a summary -- let's see -- of a 

18 medical report. The index l ists the date of mid 2003 for this 

19 summary whi le Mr . al Ba l uchi would have been at Locat ion 

20 Number 2. Again, we have -- that's right 

21 close in t i me to his torture . 

and re latively 

22 The summary itself, t hough - - sorry about that. I 

23 don' t know how to mak e i t go away, I apologize . Thanks . The 
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1 summary itself is dated early 2004. 

2 TC [MR . GROHARING): I just ask, Judge, again which 

3 attachment and the Bates number for this document? 

4 ADC [MS. PRADHAN] : I be .l ieve I just gave that, but the 

5 medical repor t is again 502Y, Attachment H, MEA-10018-3005. 

6 MJ [COL POHL] : Ms. Pradhan, do you have examples where 

7 there's a contradiction between the summary and something 

8 other than the index? 

9 ADC [MS. PRADHAN] : Yes, Your Honor. And I 'd refer you to 

10 the brief. 

11 MJ [COL POHL] : Okay. 

12 ADC [MS . PRADHAN]: In 534B, we have examples where there 

13 are not just -- I mean, if you take the inde x complete 

14 well, the problem is that you can't take the index out 

15 completely because then you would have no way of trying to 

16 compare any of this, right? Because the 2.d. profiles aren't 

17 attached or don't have any references to the custodial reports 

18 or the medical reports or anything like that; and vice versa, 

19 the medi ca·1 reports don ' t 1 i st any personnel. And again, the 

20 only exception to that are things like X3L's profile which say 

21 that he was in Location Number 2 when Mr . al Ba luchi was 

22 tortured. So that we can put together with the custodial 

23 reports or t he inte rrogation reports that talk about 
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1 Mr. al sa ·1uchi 's torture. But that ' s on·1y really -- it's a 

2 handfu l of documents. 

3 The vast majority now the government says they have 

4 given us hundred and hundreds and hundreds of documents, and 

5 that's true. Tha t' s true, right? We have, as I said in open 

6 sess ·ion, roughly 17,000 pages of documents. Now, ·it's a sma 11 

7 fraction of what I think we should have but that ' s a separate 

8 t hing. 17,000 pages. 

9 There is no way without us ing that index to put 

10 together the personnel profiles with the summaries. 

11 But t hat said. right, there is -- there are a number 

12 of examples in 5348 that, if you were to remove the index 

13 entirely, right, and just compare what the personnel profiles 

14 say with the -- what we believe the associated personnel 

15 profi l es to say with t he summar i es, t hey don't match up at 

16 al l . And it's not just per sonne l profiles, it's summary to 

17 summary , it 's STA documents to med i cal records. There are a 

18 number of examples . And actually, my l ast example is one of 

19 those . 

20 MJ [COL POHL ]: Okay, go ahead. 

21 ADC [MS . PRADHAN]: Okay. So the summary itself, as you 

22 can see , i s dated ear ·1 y 2 O O 4 . And i t cont a i n s i n format i on 

23 from assessments conducted in late 2003. Okay, late 2003. 
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9 So the potential diffe re nce is in conditions of 

10 confinement and, therefore , 

11 

12 

13 Those di fferences can't be 

14 overs t ated, right? And this ties i n wit h wha t I was say i ng 

15 yesterday about the difficu l ty of this ear l y-mid-late 

16 construction of these dates . 

17 There are many of t hese examples, aga in, 534B, where 

18 we simply can't assign a l ocation to the custodial report 

19 because he could have been in any one of at l east two places. 

20 The summary itself actually has no reference whatsoever in the 

21 entire summary to mid 2003. There 's no refere nce that 

22 anything in here is from mid 2003. The mystery i s ac t ually 

23 compl i cated by the personne l who are listed. The index l i sts 
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1 B47, I bel i eve B47 i s correct -- or B7 F , excuse me -- who is a 

2 mid-level clinical psycholog i st as the relevant personnel 

3 generating Report Number 37 , which is this -- t his document . 

4 I 'm going to go now to B47's [ sic] 2.d. profile, and 

5 

6 

7 

8 It also 

9 says that, and expl i citly , th a t during the pe r iod, I believe 

10 it says page -- yeah, says that during the pe r iod in which 

11 Mr. al Baluc hi was being tortured at Location Number 2 years 

12 earlier , 

13 So there are two possib i lities here, that t hat 

14 summary I just s howed you is from mi d 2003, a nd the 

15 government's assignment of B7F is wro ng, and the ac t ual dates 

16 on the summary nd the reference to are 

17 wrong . The second possibility is th a t the summary is 

18 correctly dated early 2004 and the government ' s assig nment of 

19 which begs the question of 

20 where exactly Mr. a l Baluchi was when the re port was 

21 ge nerated . And the third option is t hat 

22 listed as the author of t his report and both the date on the 

23 report and t he government's profile of hi m, or her, are wrong. 
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1 That ' s where that leaves us . 

2 I have one more for you, sir . 

3 MJ [COL POHL] : Okay . Go ahead . 

4 AD C [MS. PRAD HAN] : Al 'l r i gh t. The docu men t s re·l eva nt t o 

5 th i s are , again, 

6 Mr. a 1 Ba 1 uch ·i 's c hrono 1 ogy detent i on, 534B , At t achment D; a 

7 medical r eport i n the reco r d at 502Y , Attachme nt H, and tha t 

8 Bates numbe r is MEA-10018 -2972 - - I believe 2972 ; and the 2.d . 

9 pr ofi l e of WU4 , which is in the recor d at 502Y , Attachment G. 

10 The Bates is MEA - 2D -39 . 

11 Al l ri ght . So t hat is number 388 here that we' r e 

12 looking at MEA- 10018-29 72. So t he entry in t he RDI index --

13 summary of a medical r eport . 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 The medica l r epo r t i t sel f i s dated ea r ly 2004 , and it 

20 d ·i scusses Mr . a l Ba l uch·i 's abdonl'i nal pa i ns . There we go . I 

21 wa nt to note t hat this medical report summary is speci f ic to 

22 Mr. al sa ·1uchi. This becomes impor t ant . And i t doesn't 

23 conta i n any r efe r ence about any other detainees , it ' s just 
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1 Mr. al s a·1uchi ' s medica ·1 report. 

2 Accord i ng to his chronology of detention, he was , in 

3 fact , at so that could be 

4 correct. But there are two bi g di screpanc i es with th i s 

5 summary . 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 had oral a r gumen t s on 525 in October . 

16 And the di f ferences between the two sites, i ncluding 

17 dif ferences in personne l , differences i n treatment , 

18 differences in diet, differences in climate , et cetera , may 

19 have contr i buted to Mr. a·1 Ba'Juchi's abdomina ·1 pains . That's 

20 why it ' s important to know . 

21 So because of this discrepancy, it ' s just imposs i ble 

22 for us to determ i ne exactly whe r e the report was generated. 

23 But again , here the -- this early -mid -la te construct 
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1 accomplishes the confusion it, frank 'ly , I think, it sets out 

2 to achieve; because the or·iginal report , I assume , would 

3 either include the specific date of the medical consultation 

4 or the actual location of the consultation or both, right? 

5 Which would allow a true analysis of this document. 

6 So now I just want to take you to one last document, 

7 and that is, the listed personne l for this particular summary 

8 was WU4, right? It lists -- says there is th is medical 

9 report talks about Mr. al Baluchi's abdom i nal pa ins and WU4 is 

10 the relevant person. And that's what the government has told 

11 us. 

12 This is WU4's 2 . d . profile . Again , that 's 2D-39 . 

13 Just zoom i n on the f irst paragraph in particular. Now, the 

14 2 . d. profile states, I think fairly clearly i n that very first 

15 paragraph, that WU4, a jun ior-level employee , interacted with 

16 each of the accused except Ammar al Ba luchi and Ramz i 

17 Binalshibh . So WU4 did, indeed , have a single interaction 

18 with Mr . al Hawsawi at Location Number 5 in mid 2004, whic h is 

19 described later. But it doesn't expla in the massive factual 

20 discrepancy between the government's ROI index listing him as 

21 the re levant official for this particular medical report, 

22 which is an important medical report. 

23 So we don't have an explanation for this. I kn ow I 
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1 gave a few options in our first example. We don't have an 

2 explanation for why this person i s listed as the relevant 

3 official when it says clearly in his profile that he wasn't. 

4 And we don't know where the mistake is. So those are the 

5 three examples I had . 

6 Elsewhere in 534 , we ta l k about other problems with 

7 the index . The fact that there are personnel missing from 435 

8 of the 725 entries, there are just no personnel listed , no 

9 associated personnel. There are two personnel who are listed 

10 in the index itself for whom we haven't rece ived 2. d . 

11 profiles, so we can't -- we can't do this kind of comparison . 

12 There are again, this is fully briefed in 534 , the r e are 

13 many, many examples where documents are inserted, and I gave 

14 you one in open sess i on yesterday, Your Honor, documents 

15 pertaining to Mr. al Ba 'luch i 's initia ·1 interrogations or 

16 application of torture techniques are listed in the index as 

17 completely different dates, r i ght? Mid 2003 summaries, or 

18 what we believe are mid 2003 summaries listed in early 2006. 

19 Those examples are all in the brief. 

20 And just as a last sort of bizarre note , the re are 26 

21 DIMS records 

22 

23 
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1 

2 

3 

4 You can imagine the number of quest i ons that that 

5 raises. 

6 So I will leave it at that unless -- pending further 

7 questions, Your Honor. 

8 MJ [COL POHL] : No further ques tions, thank you . 

9 Trial Counsel? 

10 TC (MR. GROHARING]: Very briefly, Your Honor, I reiterate 

11 mainly what I said yesterday. And when the government t urns 

12 over discovery, we've got an obligation that it's accurate, 

13 and we acknowledge t hat . And to the extent that de f ense 

14 raises issues that t he y believe are inaccurate, we are happy 

15 to look at those issues and respond. 

16 MJ [ COL POHL]: So inaccurate as they put it in their 

17 brief, part i cularly dates or things like that , you intend to 

18 go double-check? 

19 TC [MR . GROHARING]: Correct. 

20 MJ [ COL POHL] : Okay . 

21 TC [MR. GROHARING]: And I think probably a very simple 

22 explanation to all of these matters, none of them have 

23 anything to do with the va lidity of the actual summaries that 
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1 the Military Judge has approved. The 2.d. indexes were 

2 created by the government to help the defense understand and 

3 appreciate the folks that we have identif ied , and identified 

4 as a UFI, put them in proper context, understand who t hey may 

5 or may not want to talk to based on their view of the 

6 mater ·ials . 

7 So they are not summaries of documents , they are 

8 information we pulled from many of the documents that are in 

9 the discovery ma te r ia ls. And to the extent t here are errors 

10 i n there, we ' re happy to, you know , clear that up. We are 

11 happy to answer the defense's questions in that regard. 

12 So I wi 11 say again, you know, that throughout the 

13 534B, there were repeated claims of , you know, government 

14 i ntentionally ed it ing documents to mislead t he defense , 

15 deliberately obscuring information , verifiab l e falsehoods. 

16 They go on and on and on. We categorically rejec t any claims 

17 of that nature. At no poin t di d anyone ever intentionally 

18 edit a document to mislead the defense. 

19 And again, we're happy to look at what the defense 

20 has claimed and provide a response to them that will clear up 

21 any perceived discrepancies . So other than that , Your Honor , 

22 if you don't have any questions, I don't have any add i tional 

23 argument . 
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1 MJ [COL POHL] : No quest i ens . Thank you. 

2 Ms . Pradhan, last word . 

3 ADC [MS . PRADHAN] : Just very briefly, Your Honor; a 

4 couple of points . The first is I spoke a little bit yesterday 

5 and again I will rest on my brief on this, on the fact that, 

6 yes, there are a lot of prob l ems with the dates in the RDI 

7 ·index, right? But ·i t's not l·im ·ited to those probl ems, right? 

8 And when we went th ro ugh and we wrote 534B and we wrote that 

9 it was clear that the government intentionally changed 

10 information and obfusca t ed dates, tha t's because it is clear 

11 when you go thro ugh those examples that that is exactly what 

12 happened . 

13 And one of the examples t hat I gave yesterday was t he 

14 intentiona l stripping of torture fro m one particular document. 

15 Now , that example was the onl y example I could g i ve in 

16 unclassified session and that was of Mr . Mohammad 's summary 

17 for which we have the unclass i fied co ntext for that cable . 

18 There are other examples of that contained in 534B, and we 

19 don't, fran kly, know how many examples of that there are 

20 co nce rning Mr. al Ba luchi ' s tort ure summaries or Mr. -- excuse 

21 me, Mr . al Baluchi 's interroga tion summa ri es . We simply don't 

22 know. 

23 What we know as a fact, as a ve ri fiable fact , is that 
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1 a summary of Mr. Mohammad ' s interrogation intent ionally 

2 stripped a l l context from that interrogation. It stripped the 

3 fact that he had been tortured, it stripped where the 

4 contributing information came from , and all that was left was 

5 a spontaneous declaration that sounds inculpatory . 

6 Now , we have hundreds of statements like that from 

7 Mr. al Baluchi and we have no way of knowing how much 

8 information has been stripped from those. 

9 The second point , which again we briefed, and it's at 

10 the very f ron t of 5348, it's actually in the overview, is the 

11 This is an 

12 important point. It touches on a lot of the motions we have 

13 been arguing this week and it touches on the incoming motion 

14 to suppress the military comm i ssion has requested. Ri ght, 

15 this is perhaps one of the key points. 

16 MJ [ COL POHL]: Ms. Pradhan, you are making rebuttal 

17 argument. Sounds like you are maki ng new argument altogether. 

18 ADC [MS . PRADHAN]: Not at al l, Your Honor . What I'm 

19 try ing to respond to is Mr . Groharing ' s assertion that th i s is 

20 a series of a couple of mistakes with dates and they can 

21 easily correct it . It's not the case. 

22 MJ [ COL POHL] : Okay. 

23 ADC [MS . PRADHAN] : It is not the case . What we actually 
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1 need to see are the original documents that would say who was 

2 in the room . That would say where it was. Right . That's the 

3 second part . 

4 And the third is that, just to reiterate my rea l , 

5 very real confusion about the hundreds of mistakes that we 

6 document in 5348 and the government's casual assertion that 

7 this can all be taken care of in a few minutes when they were 

8 the ones who provided this index to us. 

9 Subject to your questions. 

10 MJ (COL POHL] : I have none. Thank you. 

11 Mr. Groharing. ·1ast word, if you have one. 

12 TC [MR. GROHARING]: Briefly, Your Honor. Again, counsel 

13 doubled down on her cla i ms of government misconduct in t he 

14 performance of our duties in prepar i ng the summaries. I again 

15 categorically reject those. Those comments are ridiculous and 

16 uninformed. frankly. 

17 The example about Mr. Mohammad ' s summary comes from a 

18 SSC! report where they claim some summary that the Senate 

19 Select Service -- Select Committee on Intell i gence used i n 

20 their report is even the same document that we summarized , 

21 that we summarize and provided to the Mil itary Judge. I think 

22 what we wi l l find here that is obv i ously not the case. 

23 Diffe rent reports had di fferent informat ion. And so at no 
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1 point did the government ever take informat ion about 

2 conditions of confinement out of a report and not include that 

3 in a summary in one fa shion or another. So this idea that 

4 so mehow we've s t ripped out t reatment such that a later 

5 statement made in that same interrogation or debriefing isn't 

6 attached to it, it 's just not supported by t he facts. And you 

7 have seen the actual documents where this comes from . 

8 So we wi 11 respond to the defense but, again, I 

9 categorical l y reject any claim that the government has done 

10 anything to mask or hide the treatment of the accused. That 

11 is something, frankly -- and we have said repeatedly, we don't 

12 dispute . Th ey 're facts, and we have no intention to not 

13 disclose any of that information from the defense. 

14 So again , subject t o your quest i ons , Your Honor, 

15 that's a ·1·1 I ha ve . 

16 MJ [ COL POHL]: I have none. Thank you. 

17 That appears to address all the issues we are 

18 interested in the 806 . Okay . Th is 806 is in recess . 

19 [The R.M.C. 806 session recessed at 1108, 2 March 2018 . ] 

20 [END OF PAGE ] 

21 

22 

23 
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